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IDENTIFICATION 

Property Name (if any): Burt Kimball House      

Address: 817 Park Avenue            

Date of Construction: c. 1885     City, County: Park City, Summit County, Utah  

Architect/Builder, if known: unknown     Tax Number: PRKWDP-817-AM    

Current Owner: LTS Partners LLC  

Legal Description (include acreage): UNIT 817 PARKWOOD PLACE CONDOMINIUMS AMENDED; ACCORDING 

TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT ON FILE IN THE SUMMIT COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE CONT 3226.92 SQ FT 

TOGETHER WITH AN UND 9.4% INT IN THE COMMON AREA 1952-990 2080-343 

 

STATUS / USE 

Original Use: single dwelling Current Use: single dwelling   

Property Type:   National Register of Historic Places:  Evaluation:   

 Building    Eligible      Landmark Site 

 Structure    Ineligible      Significant Site                 

  Site     Listed, Date:     Non Historic   

          07/12/1984 - Mining Boom Era Residence Thematic District This site no longer 

meets the criteria for listing in the National Register 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PHOTO  
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DOCUMENTATION 

Photographs:   Research Sources: 

 Tax Photos    Sanborn Maps  City/ County Histories  Newspapers  

 Prints:    tax Card   Personal Interviews   Other: 

 Historic    Census Records  Park City Museum 

       

 

 

DESCRIPTION 

Architectural Style: hall-parlor type          

No. Stories: 1     

Number of Associated Structures:   Accessory building(s). #   Structure(s). #  

Condition:   Good   Fair    Poor   Uninhabitable/Ruin 

Location:  Original location  Moved (Date: 2006-08, original location: Slightly north of current 

location) 

Materials: (Describe the visible materials)  

Exterior Walls: Drop siding     

Foundation: Concrete      

Roof: Gable roof form sheathed in metal         

Windows/Doors: Vertically oriented window openings - windows have been removed     

Additions:     Major   Minor   None 

Alterations:   Major   Minor   None      

Describe Additions/ Alterations (Dates):   

 

Essential Historic Form:  Retains       Does Not Retain 

 

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

(Briefly describe the property and its setting. Include a verbal description of the location; a general description of 

the property including the overall shape, number of stories, architectural style, materials, shape of roof; identify and 

describe any associated structures; identify any known exterior additions and/or alterations.) 
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817 Park is a hall-parlor type house that has undergone a renovation as part of a development project happening 

on the block it occupies. The hall-parlor house is one of the three main house types built during the historic Park 

City mining era, but due to the many changes made, it has lost much of its historic value. The main part of the 

house was described in a 1984 National Register nomination form as follows: 

 

“This house is a one story frame hall and parlor house with a gable roof and two rear extensions. The house was 

sided with aluminum siding in 1965. The addition of siding is considered a major change, but in this case it has not 

changed the original character of the building. The white lap siding approximates the look and scale of the original 

wood siding. If the siding were removed it is likely that the house could be restored to its original appearance. The 

house was raised in 1954 so that a concrete foundation could be poured. Typical of a hall and parlor house, the 

arrangement of openings on the facade is symmetrical. A door is centered between two double hung sash two 

over two light widows. There is a single six over six double hung sash window on the south end of the building. Also 

typical of the hall and parlor house is the plan of two rooms of unequal size. Because the house measures only 12 x 

24 feet, it is likely that the rear shed extension was built as part of the original construction. That extension projects 

beyond the south wall, and there is an entrance into the east side of the projection. According to the present 

owner, Dr. John Cook, there was a wood shed in the south section of the shed extension which he enclosed in 

1965. Between 1900 and 1907 another extension was added perpendicular to the rear of the house in order to 

provide room for a kitchen. In-period rear extensions are part of Park City's architectural vocabulary. Although in 

many cases an extension represents a major alteration of the original house, it usually contributes to the 

significance of a house because it documents the most common and acceptable method of expansion of the small 

Park City house. There are two bedrooms in the top half story of the house. Although this house has received 

several major alterations, it maintains its integrity as one of the smallest extant examples of the hall and parlor 

house in Park City.” 

 

This description is still mostly accurate as it applies to the main part of the house, but there have been several 

additions made as part of the renovation. One addition is the shed roof covering the porch, which is supported by 

square wooden posts and a simple balustrade between them. A further addition has been placed on the rear of the 

house. A driveway to an underground parking area runs along the side of the house. A concrete retaining wall runs 

along the sidewalk, and turns toward the house at the driveway. The overall form and materiality of the building and 

the site have been altered and its historic value has been diminished. 

 

 

SIGNIFICANCE 

Historic Era: 

 Settlement & Mining Boom Era (1868-1893) 

 Mature Mining Era (1894-1930) 

 Mining Decline & Emergence of Recreation Industry (1931-1962) 
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Narrative Statement of Significance: 

(Briefly describe those characteristics by which this property may be considered historically significant.)  

 

The history of this house was detailed in the 1984 National Register nomination form as follows: 

“Built c. 1882, the Burt Kimball House at 817 Park is architecturally significant as one of 76 extant hall and parlor 

houses in Park City, 22 of which are included in this nomination. The hall and parlor house, the earliest house type 

to be built in Park City, and one of the three most common house types that were built during the early period of 

Park City's mining boom era, significantly contributes to the character of the residential area.  

 

This house was built by at least 1889, as indicated by the Sanborn Insurance Maps, having probably been built in 

1882 for Burt Kimball. This property was purchased in 1884 from George G. Snyder, the original settler of Park 

City, by Edwin Kimball, apparently a relative of Burt's. It was not uncommon in the early decades of Park City's 

settlement for individuals to build their houses on property which they had obtained through unofficial rather than 

legal transactions. Therefore, it is possible that Burt, either by himself or in conjunction with Edwin, had already 

“bought” this property previous to the 1884 legal transaction, and had this house built, as the following evidence 

suggests . 

 

The Park Record noted in January of 1882 that Burt Kimball had built a new 12'x24’ house with a 12'x1 2' addition 

and a new two-story barn measuring 20 'x30 '. Those dimensions match fairly closely with those estimated for this 

house and the barn on the adjacent lot to the north, as shown on the 1889 Sanborn Insurance Map, although the 

12'xl2' addition on the house does not show up on the map. Actual measurements taken of the house in October 

1983 reveal that the original section of this house is indeed 12'x24 ', but, since the scale and proportions of this 

house are typical of many other hall and parlor houses in Park City, the correlation between those dimensions 

cannot conclusively prove that this was the house built by Burt Kimball in 1882. The assumption that this was Burt 

Kimball's house is supported, however, by the existence of the two-story barn on the lot next to this house on the 

1889 Sanborn Map. There were very few barns in Park City, since it was a mining town rather than a farming town, 

and most barns of the size mentioned in the 1882 newspaper account were those of livery stables or freighting 

businesses. The barn was labeled on the 1889 Sanborn Map as Kimball's Coal Team Barn. It is known that the 

Kimball Brothers operated the largest livery stable in town , Dexter Livery (at the corner of Park Avenue and Heber 

Avenue), and that they were also involved in stage lines and freighting. The barn, which has since been torn down, 

apparently served the Kimball's coal wagon teams, and this house was probably occupied by the manager or 

caretaker of that operation, most likely one of the Kimball’s. Nothing is known for certain about Burt Kimball, but it 

can reasonably be assumed that he was involved in the Kimball Bros. operations, and that he was the original 

owner/occupant of this house. It is possible that "Burt" was the nickname for Burton T. Kimball, a long- time 

resident and rancher in the Park City area. Burton moved to Los Angeles in 1903 and died there in 1919. 

 

This house remained in the Kimball family until 1917, when it was sold to Henry Kenneth Gibson. Other owners 

include Deyson G. Larson (1940-69), and Dr. John Cook (1969-present), who at present uses the house as his 

medical offices.” 

 

The Recorder Index does not show Henry Kenneth Gibson purchasing the property until 1936. While it is 

undetermined exactly who owned the house for many years, the 1920 census shows that the house was rented by 
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Garvin and Marie Lake in that year. Garvin worked as a miner, but nothing else is known of him or Marie. The 1930 

census shows that the house was still being used as an income property, and was rented at that time by Ferry and 

Grace Scott. Ferry worked as a laborer for a silver mine.  

 

Henry Kenneth Gibson appears on the 1940 census, living in a different house on Park Avenue. He worked as a 

utility man for a mine. It is unknown if he ever lived in this house. The house does not appear on the 1940 census, 

indicating that it was likely vacant at that time.  The house is currently owned by LTS Partners LLC. 
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PHOTOS  

(Provide several clear historical and current photos of the property as well as locational maps indicating the 

location of the property in relation to streets or other widely recognized features.) 
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This is a negative from the Utah State Historical Society that is stating: 

 

Burt Kimball House 

817 Park Ave. 

Park City, Summit County, Utah  

View from Southeast corner 

 

Photo by Roger Roper, October 1983 

Negative: Utah State Historical Society 
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817 Park Avenue. Northeast oblique. November 2013. 

 

 
817 Park Avenue. East elevation. November 2013. 
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817 Park Avenue. Southeast oblique. November 2013. 
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MAPS 
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DOCUMENTS 
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